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As at As at
Note March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Zinlakhs Zinlakhs
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3(A) 79,406.59 86,179.92
Capital Work-in-Progress 3(B) 11,028.40 1,407.68
Financial Assets
(i) Loans 4 96.91 92.02
(i) Others 5 1,681.83 1,853.97
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 19 6,475.53 2,884.26
Other Non-Current Assets 6 793.07 1,303.74
Current Tax Assets (Net) 31(d) 29,789.33 29,788.98
1,29,271.66 1,33,510.57
Current Assets
Inventories 7 29,641.37 33,544.96
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 16,738.93 15,736.61
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 88,899.34 80,605.68
(iii) Bank Balances [other than (ii) above] 10 48,478.92 11,693.84
(iv) Loans 1 666.50 8,759.91
(v) Others 12 601.89 636.09
Other Current Assets 13 5,354.16 3,811.27
1,90,381.11 1,54,788.36
Total Assets 3,19,652.77 2,88,298.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 2,719.86 2,719.86
Other Equity 15 1,84,716.30 1,68,918.57
Total Equity 1,87,436.16 1,71,638.43
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 16 5,954.70 5,674.06
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 130.08 123.70
Provisions 18 2,161.21 2,359.05
Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 36.10 4015
8,282.09 8,196.96
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 16 1,220.23 1,222.09
(i) Trade Payables 21
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 703.69 1,269.34
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 87,486.70 74,843.06
enterprises
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 22 442.33 3,773.42
Other Current Liabilities 23 12,582.70 12,788.81
Provisions 24 9,863.22 9,051.11
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 31(e) 7,935.65 5,515.71
1,23,934.52 1,08,463.54
Total Liabilities 1,32,216.61 1,16,660.50
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,19,652.77 2,88,298.93
Significant accounting policies 1B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRB C& CO LLP M. S. Jacob

Chartered Accountants Whole-time Director &

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 Chief Financial Officer
(DIN : 07645510)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited

Prabha Narasimhan
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN : 08822860)

per Pritesh Maheshwari Surender Sharma
Partner Whole-time Director - Legal
Membership Number - 118746 & Company Secretary
(F-8913)
(DIN : 02731373)
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2024 Date : May 14, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial Statements

Year Ended Year Ended
Note March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
% Lakhs ¥ Lakhs % Lakhs
Revenue from Operations 25 5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
Other Income 26 7,652.20 5,357.59
(A) Total Income 5,75,695.04 5,27,977.30
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 1,45,758.73 1,49,249.58
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24,491.33 29,776.86
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, 27 2,048.26 391.94
Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Expense 28 41,172.84 37,696.99
Finance Costs 29 49963 491.38
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3A 17151.05 17,480.37
Other Expenses 30 1,64,490.48 1,50,802.04
(B) Total Expense 3,95,612.32 3,85,889.16
(C) Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax (A-B) 1,80,082.72 1,42,088.14
(D) Exceptional Items 48 1,950.20 1,120.87
(E) Profit Before Tax (C-D) 1,78,132.52 1,40,967.27
Tax Expense: 31
Current Tax 49,365.56 37,242.69
Deferred Tax 19 (3,599.00) (990.07)
(F) Total Tax Expense 45,766.56 36,252.62
(G) Profit for the year (E-F) 1,32,365.96 1,04,714.65
Other Comprehensive Loss/ (Income) (net of Tax)
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit
and Loss
Re-measurement loss/(gains) on defined (30.74) 653.49
benefit plans
Tax adjustment on above 19 7.74 (164.47)
(H) Re-measurement loss/(gains) on defined (23.00) 489.02
benefit plans (Net of tax)
(1) Total Comprehensive Income (G-H) 1,32,388.96 1,04,225.63
Earnings Per Equity Share attributable to the 36
Owners of the Company (Rupees)
(Face Value of % 1 per Equity Share)
Basic and Diluted 48.67 38.50
Significant accounting policies 1B
The accompanying notes are an integral part of
these financial statements.
As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited
ForSRBC&COLLP M. S. Jacob Prabha Narasimhan
Chartered Accountants Whole-time Director & Managing Director &
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

(DIN : 07645510)

per Pritesh Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number - 118746

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date :May 14, 2024 Date : May 14, 2024

(DIN : 08822860)

Surender Sharma

Whole-time Director - Legal

& Company Secretary
(F-8913)
(DIN:02731373)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(A)Equity Share Capital (Note 14)

Number of Amount
shares (in lakhs) (R inlakhs)
As at April 1,2022 2,719.86 2,719.86
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,719.86 2,719.86
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 2,719.86 2,719.86
(B) Other Equity (Note 15)
R inlakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
. - Share Options .
Particulars Securities General . Retained Total
Premium Reserve Outstanding Earnings
Account
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,279.93 38,43713 222.30 1,30,808.54 1,70,747.90
Profit for the year - - - 1,04,714.65 1,04,714.65
Other Comprehensive Income - - - (653.49) (653.49)
Tax Adjustment on Other Comprehensive - - - 164.47 164.47
Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - 1,04,225.63 1,04,225.63
year
Dividend paid [Refer Note 15 (iv)] - - - (1,06,074.39) (1,06,074.39)
Employee stock option expense - - 971.91 - 971.91
[Refer Note 38 ()]
Transferred to Retained Earnings for - - (692.86) 692.86 -
employees transferred during the year
Payments made against liability created - - (750.24) - (750.24)
Amount credited by Group Company - - (270.26) - (270.26)
Tax Adjustment on Employee stock option - - 68.02 - 68.02
[Refer Note 31(c)]
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,279.93 38,43713 (45113) 1,29,652.64 1,68,918.57
Profit for the year - - - 1,32,365.96 1,32,365.96
Other Comprehensive Loss - - - 30.74 30.74
Tax Adjustment on Other - - - (7.74) (7.74)
Comprehensive Loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1,32,388.96 1,32,388.96
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(B) Other Equity (Note 15) (Contd..)

®inlakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
. - Share Options .
Particulars Securities General X Retained Total
Premium  Reserve Outstanding Earnings
Account
Dividend paid [Refer Note 15 (iv)] - - - (1,16,953.82) (1,16,953.82)
Employee stock option expense - - 1,204.21 - 1,204.21
[Refer Note 38 (c)]
Transferred from Share Options - - (105.84) 105.84 -
Outstanding account for employees
transferred during the year
Payments made against liability created - - (594.86) - (594.86)
Amount credited by Group Company - - (329.75) - (329.75)
Tax Adjustment on Employee stock option - - 82.99 - 82.99
[Refer Note 31 (c)]
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,279.93 38,43713 (194.38) 1,45,193.62 1,84,716.30
Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 1B)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited
ForSRBC&COLLP M. S. Jacob Prabha Narasimhan
Chartered Accountants Whole-time Director & Managing Director &

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003  Chief Financial Officer
(DIN : 07645510)

per Pritesh Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number - 118746

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2024 Date: May 14, 2024

Chief Executive Officer
(DIN : 08822860)

Surender Sharma
Whole-time Director - Legal

& Company Secretary

(F-8913)
(DIN:02731373)
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Statement of Cash Flow
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(Z in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 1,78,132.52 1,40,967.27
Adjustment for:
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss 1.65 41.89
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 17,151.05 17,480.37
Lease Rentals received (258.69) (248.06)
Net loss / (profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25.04 (31.28)
Interest Income On Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (7,129.68) (3,990.35)
Finance Cost 499.63 491.38
Bad Debts Written Off/ Provision for Doubtful Debts 15.19 3.29
Provisions no Longer Required Written Back = (90.65)
Interest income from Unwinding of discount on security deposits (158.59) (109.91)
Employee share-based payment expense 1,204.21 971.91
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,89,482.33 1,55,485.86
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Working Capital:
Decrease in Inventories 3,903.59 2,173.81
(Increase) in Financial Assets (37,579.59) (1,724.85)
(Increase) in Other Assets (1,565.03) (601.11)
Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 12,083.41 (1,093.86)
Increase in Other Liabilities and Provisions 434,65 1,473.76
Cash Generated from Operations 1,66,759.36 1,55,713.61
Direct Taxes Paid (Net) (46,862.98) (38,087.29)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 1,19,896.38 1,17,626.32
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (7,556.40) (7,008.94)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 3.46 59.72
Purchase of Current Investments / Proceeds from disposal of 8,282.42 2,205.59
Current Investments
Lease Rentals received 258.69 248.06
Interest Received 6,935.78 3,740.80
Net Cash (used in)/ Cash flow from Investing Activities (B) 7,923.95 (754.77)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Dividends Paid (1,16,702.57) (1,05,745.18)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (1,899.49) (1,906.83)
Employee share-based payments (924.61) (1,020.50)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) (1,19,526.67) (1,08,672.51)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 8,293.66 8,199.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,605.68 72,406.64
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 88,899.34 80,605.68
Bank Balances in:
Current Accounts 4,792.01 969.36
Deposit Accounts (with less than 3 months original maturity) 84,107.33 79,636.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2024 (Refer Note 9) 88,899.34 80,605.68
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for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Contd.)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)
Changes in liabilities arising from Financing Activities:
1) Dividend
Unpaid Dividend as at beginning of the year 3,393.84 3,064.63
Dividend Declared 1,16,953.82 1,06,074.39
Dividend Paid (1,16,702.57) (1,05,745.18)
Dividend as at year end (Including unpaid) 3,645.09 3,393.84
2) Lease Liabilities
Lease Liabilities as at beginning of the year 6,896.15 8,305.36
Additions during the year 1,678.64 6.24
Finance Charges paid under Lease Liabilities during the year 499.63 491.38
Payment of Lease Liabilities during the year (1,899.49) (1,906.83)
Lease Liabilities as at year end 7174.93 6,896.15
Notes:

1.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003  Chief Financial Officer

per Pritesh Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number - 118746

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash

Flow as notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

M. S. Jacob
Whole-time Director &

(DIN : 07645510)

(F-8913)

Surender Sharma
Whole-time Director - Legal
& Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited

Prabha Narasimhan
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN : 08822860)

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2024

(DIN:02731373)
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

1A. Corporate Information:

1B.

Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited is a subsidiary of
Colgate-Palmolive, USA and a listed Company in India.
The Company was incorporated on September 23,
1937 under the provisions of The Companies Act. The
registered office of the company is located at Colgate
Research Center, Main street, Hiranandani Gardens,
Powai, Mumbai - 400076. Its shares are listed on two
recognized stock exchanges in India. The Company
is engaged in manufacturing/trading of toothpaste,
tooth powder, toothbrush, mouthwash and personal
care products.

These financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors on
May 14, 2024.

Material Accounting Policies:

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
i. Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division Il
of Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to financial
statements.

The financial statements are presented in ¥ and all
values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (X 00,000),
except when otherwise indicated.

ii. Historical Cost Convention

These financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value;
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o Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at
fair value; and

e Share-Based payments.
Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold
or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realized within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e |t is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle

e |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as twelve months for the purpose of current / non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(b) Foreign currency translation

(©)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial
statements are presented in Indian currency
(INR), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Realized gains
and losses on settlement of foreign currency
transactions are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are
translated at the year-end exchange rates, and the
resultant exchange difference is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items
including capital spares which are identified as a
part of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work-In-Progress

Cost and direct expenses incurred for construction of
assets or assets to be acquired, which are not ready to
use in the manner intended by the management are
disclosed under Capital Work- In-Progress.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual value

The useful lives of the assets are based on technical
estimates approved by the Management, and are lower
than or same as the useful lives prescribed under
schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to
reflect the period over which depreciable assets are
expected to be used by the Company. Depreciation is
calculated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line
method so as to write-down the cost of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value systematically over
its estimated useful life based on useful life of the
assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in case of following assets,
wherein based on internal assessment and technical
evaluation, a different useful life has been determined.

Useful Life

Asset Class

Residential and Office Buildings 40 years
Factory Buildings 20 years
Plant and Equipment 7 to 15 years
Dies and Moulds (included in 3 years
Plant and Equipment)

Furniture and Fixtures 5 years
Office Equipment (including 5 years

Computer Servers)

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed annually, taking into account
commercial and technological obsolescence as well as
normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
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(d) Leases

B 244

As a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of
the asset.

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Company recognizes a liability to make lease
payments (ie, the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (ie, the right-of-use asset).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognized and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased
asset transfers to the Company at the end of the
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease

liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
re-measured if there is a modification or a change in
the lease term. The Company separately recognizes
the interest expense on the lease liability as finance
cost and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset.

The Company accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease when both of the following conditions
are met:

e The modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets.

e The consideration for the lease increases
commensurate with the standalone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price reflects the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that fully or partially
decreases the scope of the lease the Company
decreases the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset to reflect partial or full termination of the
lease. Any difference between those adjustments is
recognized in profit or loss at the effective date of
the modification.

The Company has elected to use the exemptions
proposed by the standard on lease contracts for
which the lease terms ends within 12 months as of
the date of initial application, and lease contracts
for which the underlying asset is of low value which
is considered to be ¥ 3.5 Lakhs.

As a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognized over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.
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(e) Investment property

Q)

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment
property. Investment property is measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized to the assets carrying
amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
which are 40 years.

Though the Company measures investment property
using cost based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair
values are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accredited external independent
valuer.

Investment properties are derecognized either when
they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized
in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net
of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Amortization

Intangible assets comprise Goodwill, Trademarks,
Copyright and Technical Know-how. Intangible assets
(other than Goodwill) are amortized over the useful
life of assets, not exceeding 10 years.

The estimated useful life and amortization methods
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in the
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

(9

(h

)

Nr

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense
when it is incurred. Development costs of products
are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless all the criteria for capitalization have been met
by the Company. Development expenditures on an
individual project are recognized as an intangible
asset when the Company can demonstrate:

e The technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that the asset will be available
for use or sale

e |ts intention to complete and its ability and
intention to use or sell the asset

e How the asset will generate future economic
benefits

e The availability of resources to complete the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during development

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of its assets other
than inventory and deferred tax. An impairment loss
is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined as higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash generating unit). Assessment is done
at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss recognized for an
asset in the prior accounting period may no longer
exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that the assets carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined if no impairment loss
had previously been recognized.

Inventories

Inventories of raw and packing materials, stores,
work-in-progress, finished goods and stock in trade
are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
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@

()

(k)
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- Cost is determined using standard cost method
that approximates actual cost.

- Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods
includes materials, labour and manufacturing
overheads and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Spares that do not qualify to be recognized as
Property, Plant and Equipment are included in stores
and spares.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are measured at contracted price
and subsequently measured at amortized cost net
of any expected credit losses, if any. The Company
provides for expected credit loss using simplified
approach based on the probability of defaults which
are possible over the lifetime of assets.

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Assets:
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset, except in the
case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the
Company classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

e those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets
measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business
model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FvOCi)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.
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Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair value through
Profit or Loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
other income.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized only when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired, or

e the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows to one or more recipient

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the
Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset
is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial
asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is derecognized if the company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognized to the extent
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Expected credit losses are recognized for all
financial assets subsequent to initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities
Classification as liability or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured
at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition,
they are classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss is measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within twelve months after the reporting
period. They are recognized initially at their fair
value.

Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision when there
is a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as an interest expense.
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Contingent Liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow
of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

(m) Revenue from operations

B 248

Sale of goods

The Company's revenue contracts represent a
single performance obligation to sell its products to
trade customers. Sales are recorded at the time
control of the products is transferred to trade
customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to be entitled
to in exchange for the products. Control is the
ability of trade customers to direct the use of and
obtain the benefit from our products. In evaluating
the timing of the transfer of control of products to
trade customers, the Company considers transfer of
significant risks and rewards of products and the
probability of flowing of future economic benefit
to the Entity as per the terms of the Contract which
usually coincide with the delivery of the goods.

Revenue is measured on the basis of contracted
price and reduced by variable consideration. Variable
consideration includes sales returns, trade discounts,
volume based incentives, and cost of promotional
programs, indirect taxes as may be applicable.

The Company provides volume based incentives to
certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold
specified in the contract. Incentives are offset
against amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate & recognize a liability for the incentives,
the Company applies methods which best predicts
the amount of incentive and is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained in the
contract. The volume incentive is estimated at
contract inception and recognized when it is highly
probable that significant revenue reversal will not
OCCUr.

Company's contracts with trade customers do not
have significant financing components or non-cash
consideration and the Company does not have

unbilled revenue or significant amounts of
prepayments from customers.

The company pays sales commission to its
employees for contract that they obtain for sales of
goods and immediately expensed out sales
commissions (included under employee benefits).

Contract balances
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when
the Company performs its obligation to transfer
goods or services under the contract.

Service Income

Service Income is recognized on cost plus basis as
per the terms of the contract with customers, as
and when the service is performed.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized
using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases where the
Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the
expected inflationary cost increases. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature.
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Government Grant

Government grants are recognized where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received,
and all attached conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Ind AS 20 permits the
grant to be recognized in profit or loss. The Company
has chosen to present grants related to an expense
item as other operating income in the statement of
profit and loss.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for salaries, wages and performance
incentives including non-monetary benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognized in respect
of employees services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefits obligations in the Balance Sheet.

Long Term Employee Benefits

e Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and
Employee's State Insurance:

The Company has Defined Contribution Plans
for its employees such as Provident Fund,
Superannuation Fund, Employee’s State Insurance
etc. and contribution to these plans are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,
as the Company has no further obligation
beyond making the contributions.

¢ Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined
benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination
of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of

employment. The Company's liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of each year. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields
at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the period in which they occur directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the Statement of changes
in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in the
Statement of profit and loss as past service cost.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Profit or
Loss in subsequent periods.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Provident Fund:

In respect of certain employees, Provident Fund
contributions are made to a Trust administered
by the Company. The interest rate payable by
the trust to the beneficiaries every year is
notified by the Government. The Company has
an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any,
between the return from the investment of the
trust and interest as per the notified rate. The
Company's liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the
end of the year. Measurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the period in which they occur directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the Statement of changes
in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in the
Statement of profit and loss as past service cost.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Profit or
Loss in subsequent periods.
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Compensated Absences:

Accumulated compensated absences, which are
expected to be availed or encashed within 12
months from the end of the year and are treated
as short term employee benefits. The obligation
towards the same is measured at the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount expected to be paid as a
result of the unused entitlement as at the year
end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which
are expected to be availed or encashed beyond
12 months from the end of the year end are
treated as other long term employee benefits.
The Company's liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year Actuarial losses/gains are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which they arise.

Voluntary Retirement Scheme:

Expenditure on voluntary retirement scheme is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which incurred.

Share based Payments

The Company does not provide any equity-
based compensation to its employees. However,
the parent Company, Colgate Palmolive
Company, US.A. (the grantor') maintains equity
incentive plans that provide for the grant of
stock-based awards to its executive directors and
certain categories of officers and employees.
The 2009 Executive Incentive Compensation
Plan and 2013 Incentive Compensation Plan
(Incentive Plan’) provides for the grant of non-
qualified and incentive stock options, as well as
restricted stock units which are together referred
to as employee stock options. Exercise prices in
the case of non-qualified and incentive stock
options are not less than the fair value of the
underlying common stock of the grantor on the
date of grant.

A stock option gives an employee, the right to
purchase shares of Colgate Palmolive Company
common stock at a fixed price for a specific
period of time. Stock options generally have a
term of six years and vest over three years.

A restricted stock unit (RSU) provides an
employee with a share of Colgate Palmolive
Company common stock upon vesting. Restricted
stock units vest in annual installments generally
over a period of three years. Dividends will accrue
with each restricted stock unit award granted
subsequent to grant date.

Employee Stock Options (ESOPs') issued by the
parent entity are accounted for as equity-settled
as the Company has no obligation to settle the
share-based payment transaction and also the
shares are of parent Company.

Company recognizes the expense over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied, as determined on the grant date,
based on the fair value of the options/RSUs. At
the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In case where there is a clear link between the
recharge from the parent company and the
expense, Company accounts for the recharge
as capital distribution even if the amount of
recharge is more than the expense recognized
over the vesting period (as the recharge is
based on the intrinsic value).

In case where the employee has not served the
Company during the vesting period and for
which they get the debit note from parent,
the cost is debited to management recharge
expense.

Further, where the management recharge is
not expected from the parent entity as the
employee has been relocated to another group
company i.e. the employee is not expected to
render future services to the Company at the
time of exercise of option, the Company
transfers the proportionate amount of share
options outstanding account related to such
employees to Retained Earnings, after taking
into consideration the probability of employees
re-locating back to the Company.
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(o) Income Tax

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax
and deferred tax, are included in the determination
of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with prevailing
income tax law. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

The Company evaluates whether it has any uncertain
tax positions which requires adjustments to provision
for current tax. The Company has ongoing disputes
with Income Tax Authorities on various matters.
In respect of certain allowance/deductions, it is
probable that such positions will not be accepted by
Tax authorities and hence the same has been
considered and adequately provided for while
calculating current tax provision of the respective
years. In respect of certain allowances/ deductions
taken by the Company, it is probable that such
disputes will be accepted by Tax authorities and
hence the same have been considered and disclosed
as a part of Contingent Liability.

e Current Tax

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a
net basis.

e Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized for all the deductible
temporary differences by using the liability
method, only to the extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company
reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, if
any.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside

profit or loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred
tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off assets against liabilities representing
current tax and where the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income
levied by the same governing taxation laws.

(p) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘'CODM). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
The Company has identified ‘'Personal Care
(including Oral Care)' as its only primary reportable
segment, which primarily includes products such as
Soaps, Cosmetics and Toilet Preparations.

(q) Cash Flow Statement

(s)

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Contributed Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax.
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(t) Earnings Per share

i. Basic Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the Company

e By the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii. Diluted Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

e The weighted average number of additional
equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

2. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates

- 052

and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgments is included in
relevant notes.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation (Refer
Note 1B(n) and Note 28)

- Estimation of Useful life of Property, plant and
equipment and intangibles (Refer Note 1B(c) and
Note 3)

- Estimation of taxes (Refer Note 1B(0), Note 19 and
31)

- Estimation of impairment of trade receivables
(Refer Note 1B(i) and Note 8)

- Estimation of provision and contingent liabilities
(Refer Note 1B(I)(iv), Note 24 and 32)

- Estimation of Share based payments to
employees (Refer Note 1B(n) and Note 38)

- Estimation of variable consideration in respect of
revenue recognition (Refer Note 1B(m) and Note
25)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.



Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

Sustainability and Us

Corporate Overview

"(91 ®10N J8Jay) AjAIIdadsal (SUNeT £G°2L 21 €202 ‘LE UDIBIN) SUME| /G2l 2 PUB (SUXe] 90’812 2t €202
‘LE UDIBN) SUMET 69852 2 3l 202 ‘LE UdIeln papua Jeak ayj JoJ asuadxa uoliepaldap pue awodul [ejual ay] 1994 alenbs Jad -/008‘Le 2 SI UOIelIdDUOI3)
pa1ybIapA JO [B103 Sapnpul palapisuod sindul 9|geAlasgoun Juedyiubls ayl D39 Sa21JJO [ejdJawwod Jo adAy yans Joj sidAng aandadsold pue puewap
‘Ayladoud ay) Jajsuesy/|@s 03 3ybu se yons siolde) 0] uaAlb uaaqg aAey sabejybiam anp ydiym ul yoeoldde 1ayiewl Japun uoieniea Jo poylaw uostedwod
sajes ayl buisn Janjea juspuadapul [euiaixs pajipaldde ue AQ pawlojiad uopen|eAs [eNUUE UE UO paseq Paullllalsp s anjea dieqd (SUel 092°€ 2 : €202
‘LE UYDIBN) SUM BT PER'E 2 JO dNn|eA Jiej pue (SUxeT 86'88L 2 : €202 ‘LE UdIBN) sUeT L9/ 2 JO anjeA buiAlied 1au yiim Ajladold juawisaaul apnipul sbuipjing

uawdinba pue jue|d Aj1adold Jo uonisinboe ay] 104 SJusLIILIWIOD [BJIdED JO SINSOIDSIP 104 1€ 910N 01 Jajay

‘A11D14S 18 buipjing Alo1de4 (J) pue pueues e sbuip|ing A1012e4 (3) ‘eon e sbuipjing A101oe4
(p) ‘Ippeg 1e bulpjing Aloide4 () ‘lequunin ‘1emod 1e 213U Ydieasady (q) ‘€€ 910N Jajal Jayling ‘puewusp ayl buisauod pue pue| ayl Jo Japualins 1o) sdais
|leba| Alessadau bupjey si pue uojuido jebaj usye] sey Auedwod ay] "buipuad s| Ja11ew oyl pue 10adsal Siyl Ul 14N 01 uoiejuasalidal e apew sey Auedwod
93U "juawubisse Jo 13JJo S paXoAdl sey IdIN ‘Bulpjing A1oidey ayl buluiofpe pue| Jo jo0id ayj splebas sy *|IN 2 S| pue| pies ayj ul sybil pjoyases| JO anjea
9yl AuedwoDd ayl JO JINOARY Ul ‘puUB| pIeS ay3 Ul S]UBIl 9Sea| JO JJSUBIY [BUIIOS P3123442 19A J0U Sey (1dN) ISNJL 110d lequinin oy ‘AueduwoDd ayj Jo aweu ay)
ul si buipjing A1o3oe4 ay3 Jo diysiaumo ay3 alIym ‘spuels buipjing ayi yaiym uo pue| ayi ui syybu pjoyases| pue 11mas 1e buipjing Aloide4 (e) : apnpui sbuipjing

‘pueues e
(DaID) uonelodiod Juswdolaaa |elisnpul Jeselnn ‘ysapeld eiypuy A0S 1e pagiwi (d) A11D 1S pue eo 1e uoijelodiod JuswdojaAad |elIsnpul eon ‘ippeg
18 Aduaby JuswdolaAs@ ealy [elIsnpul yiim asea Japun Aueduwod ay] JO uoissassod ayi ul pue| ayl Jo 30adsal ul sybil 9ses| sapnjdul pjoyasea - puel

(AD)
[a;

an

®

[mojaq g € 910N 413J9y]

ot'820‘LL ssaiboud-ul-iom |eaided
65°901°6L 800L¥‘ev'L v¥'SP9 SO'LSLZL L'v96'S2L £9'9/8'L2‘2 91°'899 0£00%°‘0L evvviLelL’e SI9SSY |ejoL
///8S‘€ 9€'186'9 LO'86 S§6'900°L 2¥'2/09 €lr69sol  v0'86 69°006°L 8799/ juswdinb3 10
S¥7'c6 £€90L2 €6'€8 0/’LOL 09'880°2 28'86l'e £2'V8 8'7Sl Lo'gel’e SalNxl4 pue aimiuing
1'L09‘9E €8'1€8°20°1 5029 LEEVLLL L6'677S°16 L6°2EVBEL L6LLY /S'S06‘S LE'SO0'VEL (paumo) Juswdinb3 pue jueld

[molag
/LEEll'se 00876l Sl 80'69€2 £€°080%7L LE19SYY  ve'8 /1729 /8YV6Er (A1) pue (1) 210N J2Jay] sbuipjing
98'LLOYL 2520LLL - SE'626°l VAR VAN 8Evll'se - 22'sL8fL oleee‘ce [(1) (@) € 1249¥] s3955E 3SN-JO-1YDIRY

‘Lad
veoz veoz sjuaunsnfpy Jeakayiioy €202 veoz sjuawnisnfpy €202 ‘L udv
sjuaunsnfpy je se
‘LE Yoiew ‘LE yoiew /siajsuel) uonesniowy ‘L juUdy ‘LEYdie  /siajsued) ’
T : /suonippy  anjeA buiAued
jesy jesy /s|esodsiq Juonepaidag iesy jesy /s|esodsiq o ’ siejndnied
SS04D /150D :
jJunowy
uonjesiiowy/uonjenaldag paje|nwinddy junowy Bulhiied ssoin

buihiied 19N T o :
(suejul 2)

jusawdinb3 pue jue|d ‘Aj4adoad : (1) (V) € 910N

202 ‘LE YdJe papus Jeah sy 1oJ

Sjuosuwloje]s jeibueui4 ayj 0] So9JON

253 .



Annual & ESG Report 2023-2024

cp COLGATE-PALMOLIVE (INDIA|LIMITED

dIAMD Ul papn|pul sjunowe Jo 18U ale AjaAindadsal
OE 910N pue 82 310N Ul pasoldsip sasuadxa Jayjo pue Alejes ‘syoafoid |elided spiemo] palindul (SUNe] 9'E 2 - €202 ‘LE UdIeW) SUde] 6€2L 2 JO sasuadxa
13410 pue (spfe 290/ 2 - €£202°LE YDIBW) SUel 922 2 Jo Alejes Buiaq (SYxe 80/ 2 - €202 ‘LE UDIBN) S e G8'vE 2 sapN|dul ssaibolid-uijiop eaided

89Z01‘LL 01°'820°LL Buiso|y
€6'S0EYL 9€2/v8 1eaA ayy buunp pasiejide) - ssan
616259 80°€608 1eaA ay) buLnp uonIPPY - PPY
crv8Lel 89/0v LL puluado
€202 ‘LE Ydien 202 ‘LE Yaienw
sJejndnJed
jesy jesy
(Stpfejur )
1eah ayj burinp Juawarow ssaiboud-ul-jiom jelided
(dIMD) ssaibouid-ur-jiom |eaided : (g) € 910N
[mo]aq g € 910N 43J93]
89L0tLL ssa1boad-ul-lom |eaided
26'6/1'98 LS'¥96'52‘L 20'vse LE08YLL LI'SEL'80'L Ev'vyLele 9P2se 8S'L6EZL LE'SE0'SO‘2 S]9SSY |ejoL
20692 ot'2/0' ev'eol VAWIAS 2/'88€°‘S 81'99/8 LEE6L 95%80°L €2'G/8%7 juswdinb3 92140
LO'OY 09'880°2 8¢t [ AN 9601702 logele 8¢€'¢ LV7'6E 252602 Salnxi4 pue ainiuing
ov'SSi'‘er L6'67S°16 L2/s Lg'esL2L LE'€evy’6L  LE'SOOVEL  €6'LL G/'622°9 6 /v8/2'L (paumo) Juswdinb3 pue jued
[moleq
059892  LE080%ZL - /9VSEC 04'S2/YL  [8VV6'Er 8¢l 049 Loes6‘e (A1) pue (11) 910N J4249] sbuipjing
66'G2LYL VAR VAN - 69'€202 8v'6vLL ole6e‘ce - orLe 90'892‘ce [(1) (@) € 12J9¥] s3955E BSN-JO-1YDIRY
2zoz ‘L udv
€202 €202 sjuswnisnfpy J1ead ayj 1o 2eoe €202 sjuaunsnipy syusunsnfpy  3e se anjea
‘LE Yolew ‘LE Youew /siajsuel) uonesipiowy ‘L judy ‘LE yalew /siajsuel) N
T : /suonippy BuiAiied
jesy jesy /s|esodsiq Juonepaidag iesy jesy /s|esodsiq i X slejndnled
$S0UD /150D
unowy uonesnJowy/uoneaidag pajejnwindd unowy buiAiie) ssou
m:_?_‘_mu 1N 1jesn v/uoljel d pa3e| v ] v bul D D
(sue|ur2)

juawdinb3 pue jueld ‘Aj4adoud : (11) (V) € 910N

202 ‘L€ Ydle papus Jeak ay] 1oJ

Sjuosuwloje]s jeibueui4 ayj 0] SoJON

B 054



Corporate Overview Sustainability and Us | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Capital work in progress ageing schedule

R in lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31 March, 2024
’ Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1year 3 years
Projects in progress 2,887.83 56.71 - 8,083.86 11,028.40
Total 2,887.83 56.71 - 8,083.86 11,028.40
(R inlakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31 March, 2023
’ Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1year 3 years
Projects in progress 2,740.85 260.38 266.47 4313 3,310.83
Projects temporarily suspended - - 3.20 8,093.65 8,096.85
Total 2,740.85 260.38 269.67 8,136.78 11,407.68

For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue, the project wise details of when the project is expected to
be completed is given below as of March 31, 2024

(Rinlakhs)
As at 31 March 2024 To be completed in
CWIP Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1year 3 years
Projects in progress
Toothpaste Plant Building* 8,083.86 - 8,083.86
Total 8,083.86 - - - 8,083.86

*During the previous year, project was suspended however in current year the same is covered under projects in progress. Subsequent to year end, the
Company has capitalised this project in April 2024.

For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue, the project wise details of when the project is expected to
be completed is given below as of March 31, 2023

(% in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 To be completed in
CWIP Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1year 3 years
Projects temporarily suspended
Toothpaste Plant Building - 8,083.86 - - 8,083.86
Total - 8,083.86 - - 8,083.86

Note 3 (C): Other Intangible Assets

The Gross carrying value of intangible assets of ¥ Nil have been fully depreciated and the carrying value as at March 31,
2024 is Nil. (March 31, 2023 - Nil). Intangible assets comprise Goodwill, Trademarks, Copyright and Technical Know-how.
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Note 3 (D) (I): Right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the year

(®inlakhs)

Right-of-
PI.::mt and Vehicles . T Buildings Others vse ass.ets Leasehold Total (A+B)

Equipment Equipment (excluding Land (B)

land) (A)
As at April 01,2023 6,211.10 = 9.14 706.10 56.19 6,982.54 7,143.45 14,125.99
Addition/Modification 12.48 = 25917 1,543.57 = 1,815.22 = 1,815.22
Amortisation 1,091.00 = 86.58 618.65 4916 1,845.39 83.96 1,929.35
Deletion = = - = = = =
As at March 31,2024 5,132.58 - 18173 1,631.02 7.03 6,952.37 7,059.49 14,011.86

Note 3 (D) (ll): Right-of-use assets recognized and the movements for the previous year

(R inlakhs)
Right-of-
Plant and . IT . use assets  Leasehold
Equipment Vehicles Equipment Buildings Others (excluding Land (B) Total (A+B)
land) (A)
As at April 01, 2022 7,304.29 7.88 9.81 1197.27 372.76 8,892.01 7,226.57 16,118.58
Addition/Modification - - 6.08 25.02 - 31.10 - 3110
Amortisation 1,093.19 7.88 6.75 516.19 316.57 1,940.57 83.12 2,023.69
Deletion - - = = - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 6,211.10 - 914  706.10 56.19 6,982.54 7143.45  14,125.99
Financial Assets
Note 4: Non-Current Loans
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Secured and Considered Good
Loans to Employees 96.91 92.02
96.91 92.02
Note 5: Other Non-Current Financial Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Security Deposits (Amortised Cost) 1,429.87 1,604.35
Deposits with banks (with maturity period of more than 12 months) * 251.96 249.62
1,681.83 1,853.97

*Held as lien by Banks against Bank Guarantees issued to Regulatory authorities in the normal course of business.
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Note 6: Other Non-current Assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R inlakhs) (R inlakhs)
Capital Advances (Refer Note 34) 61.63 594.44
Deposits with Government and other authorities 692.66 637.28
Prepaid Expenses 38.78 72.02
793.07 1,303.74
Note 7: Inventories
(Lower of cost or net realisable value)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(Zin lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Raw and Packing Materials 7,333.53 9,214.90
Work-in-Progress 2,770.68 2,009.57
Finished Goods 15,069.96 16,880.22
Stock-in-Trade 1,666.70 2,665.81
[includes goods in transit % 317.18 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 91.32 Lakhs)]
Stores and Spares 2,800.50 2,774.46
29,641.37 33,544.96
Note 8: Trade Receivables
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R inlakhs) (R inlakhs)
Trade Receivables 14,189.80 12,968.94
Receivables from related parties (Refer Note 37) 3,145.40 3,359.69
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (596.27) (592.02)
16,738.93 15,736.61
Unsecured and Considered Good 16,738.93 15,736.61
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 596.27 592.02
Allowance for doubtful debts (596.27) (592.02)
16,738.93 15,736.61
Trade receivables ageing schedule*
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(X in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good
Current but not due 8,969.29 9,468.48
less than 6 months 7,337.51 5,952.15
6 months - 1year 256.12 24704
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Note 8: Trade Receivables (Contd..)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(R in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
1-2 years 137.29 42.99
2-3 years 10.28 3.28
More than 3 years 28.44 22.67
16,738.93 15,736.61
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
6 months - 1year 17410 149.46
1-2 years 120.00 82.21
2-3 years 48.67 86.17
More than 3 years 253.50 274.18
596.27 592.02
Total Trade receivables
Current but not due 8,969.29 9,468.48
less than 6 months 7,337.51 5,952.15
6 months - 1year 430.22 396.50
1-2 years 257.30 125.20
2-3 years 58.95 89.45
More than 3 years 281.94 296.85
Total 17,335.20 16,328.63
There are no disputed trade receivables.
* Outstanding for the above periods are based on due date of payment.
Note 9: Cash and Cash Equivalents
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Bank Balances in:
- Current Accounts 4,792.01 969.36
- Deposit Accounts (with less than 3 months original maturity) 84,107.33 79,636.32
88,899.34 80,605.68
Note 10: Other Bank Balances
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Earmarked balances with Banks in:
- Unpaid Dividend Account 3,558.10 3,308.19
- Unpaid Share Capital Reduction Account 87.49 85.65
- Deposits with maturity more than 3 month but less than 12 months 44,833.33 8,300.00
48,478.92 11,693.84
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Note 11: Current Loans

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Secured and Considered Good
Loans to Employees 36.88 39.98
Unsecured and Considered Good
Inter-Corporate Deposits* 629.62 8,719.93
666.50 8,759.91
* (Inter-Corporate Deposits includes amounts with maturity period of 91 days, Rate of interest at 10% (March 31, 2023 - 91-125 days,
Rate of interest ranging 6%-10%)
Note 12: Other Current Financial Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Receivables from Related Parties (Refer Note 37) 268.76 410.98
Security Deposits 33313 190.00
Insurance Claims Receivable - 3511
601.89 636.09
Note 13: Other Current Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Balances with Government Authorities 213.37 213.37
Prepaid Expenses 809.32 673.24
Advances to Suppliers 4,022.21 2,742.09
Employee Advances 239.48 12.79
Fringe Benefit Advance Tax 69.78 69.78
5,354.16 3,811.27
Note 14: Equity Share Capital
Authorised Equity Share Capital:
Number of Amount
shares (% Lakhs)
As at April 1,2022 1,37,00,00,000 13,700.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31,2023 1,37,00,00,000 13,700.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,37,00,00,000 13,700.00
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Note 14: Equity Share Capital (Contd..)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
(A)Movement in Equity Share Capital

Number of  Equity Share Capital

shares (par value in Lakhs)

As at April 1,2022 2719,85,634 2,719.86
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 27,19,85,634 2,719.86
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 27,19,85,634 2,719.86

(B)Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has one class of Equity Shares having par value of % 1 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion

to their shareholding.

(C)Shares held by Ultimate Holding Company and its Subsidiaries:

R in lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A., the Ultimate Holding Company 1,089.53 1,089.53
10,89,52,694 (March 31, 2023 - 10,89,52,694) equity shares.
Colgate-Palmolive (Asia) Pte Ltd., Singapore, Subsidiary of the Ultimate 297.59 297.59
Holding Company 2,97,58,852 (March 31, 2023 - 2,97,58,852) equity
shares.
Norwood International Incorporated, U.S.A., Subsidiary of the Ultimate 0.01 0.01
Holding Company 1,126 (March 31, 2023 - 1,126) equity shares.
(D)Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Shares in the Company:
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A.
Number of Shares 10,89,52,694 10,89,52,694
% of Holding 40.06 40.06
Colgate-Palmolive (Asia) Pte Ltd., Singapore
Number of Shares 2,97,58,852 2,97,58,852
% of Holding 10.94 10.94
(E)Details of shares held by promoters
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A.
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 10,89,52,694 10,89,52,694

Change during the year
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Note 14: Equity Share Capital (Contd..)

. As at As at
ANk March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Shares at the end of the year 10,89,52,694 10,89,52,694
% of Total shares 40.06 40.06
% of change during the year - -
Colgate-Palmolive (Asia) Pte Ltd., Singapore
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 2,97,58,852 2,97,58,852
Change during the year - -
Number of Shares at the end of the year 2,97,58,852 2,97,58,852
% of Total shares 10.94 10.94
% of change during the year - -
Norwood International Incorporated, U.S.A
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 1,126 1,126
Change during the year - -
Number of Shares at the end of the year 1,126 1,126
% of Total shares 0.00 0.00
% change during the year - -
Total Promoters Shareholding
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 13,87,12,672 13,87,12,672
Change during the year - -
Number of Shares at the end of the year 13,87,12,672 13,87,12,672
% of Total shares 51.00 51.00
% change during the year - -
Note 15: Other Equity
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% Lakhs) (% Lakhs)
Securities Premium Account [Refer (i) below] 1,279.93 1,279.93
General Reserve [Refer (ii) below] 38,43713 38,43713
Share Options Outstanding Account [Refer (iii) below] (194.38) (45113)
Retained Earnings [Refer (iv) below] 1,45,193.62 1,29,652.64
1,84,716.30 1,68,918.57
(i) Securities Premium
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(F Lakhs) (% Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,279.93 1,279.93
Balance at the end of the year 1,279.93 1,279.93

(Securities Premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013)
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(ii) General Reserve

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(% Lakhs) (% Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year 38,43713 38,43713
Balance at the end of the year 38,43713 38,43713

(Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013,
the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been
withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with
the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013)

(iii) Share Options Outstanding account (Refer Note 38)

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year (45113) 222.30

Add: Employee stock option expense 1,204.21 971.91

Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings for employees transferred during (105.84) (692.86)
the year/relocated to another group companies

Less: Payments made against liability created (594.86) (750.24)

Less: Amount credited by Group Company (329.75) (270.26)

Add: Tax Adjustment on above 82.99 68.02

Balance at the end of the year (194.38) (45113)

(Reserve created for all outstanding employee stock options and RSUs. The share-based payment reserve is used to
recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees)

(iv) Retained Earnings

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(X in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,29,652.64 1,30,808.54

Add: Profit for the year 1,32,365.96 1,04,714.65

Add: Other Comprehensive (Loss)/ Income 23.00 (489.02)

Add: Transferred from Share Options Outstanding account for employees 105.84 692.86
transferred during the year

Less: Appropriations
- Second Interim Dividend FY 22-23 - % 21/- per share (57,116.98) (57,116.98)
(FY 21-22 - % 21/- per share)

- First Interim Dividend X 22/- per share (FY 2022-23 - ¥ 18/- per share) (59,836.84) (48,957.41)

Total Appropriations (1,16,953.82) (1,06,074.39)

Balance at the end of the year 1,45,193.62 1,29,652.64

1,84,716.30 1,68,918.57

(Retained earnings are the profits that a company has earned to date, after appropriation for dividends payouts)
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Note 16: Lease liabilities

As a Lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various items of plant and equipments, vehicles, offices and residential buildings.
Leases of plant and equipments has lease term of 10 years, while other leases have lease terms ranging from 2 years to 9
years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. The Company has
lease contracts that includes extension option, however the lease term in respect of such extension option is not defined
in the contract.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of low value. The Company applies
the 'short-term lease' and 'lease of low-value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year are given in Note 3(D)(I).

Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
As at April 01 6,896.15 8,305.36
Addition 1,678.64 6.24
Interest 49963 491.38
Payment (1,899.49) (1,906.83)
As at March 31 7174.93 6,896.15
Non current 5,954.70 5,674.06
Current 1,220.23 1,222.09
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Note 3D) 1,929.35 2,023.69
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 29) 499.63 491.38
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in Note 30 under 471.99 491.56
lease rentals)
471.99 491.56

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 7.33% p.a. to 7.64% p.a., with maturity between 2024-2030.

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 1,899.49 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 and  1,906.83
lakhs for the year ended March 2023.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 40.

As a Lessor

The Company has given office premise space under non-cancellable operating lease for a period of 1 year ended 31st May,
2024. The rental income from the asset given on lease of ¥ 258.69 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 248.06 Lakhs) has been
disclosed as "Lease Rentals" under Other Income in Note 26 to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Description of significant operating lease arrangements in respect of premises:
- The Company has taken refundable interest free security deposit under the lease agreements.
- Agreement contain provision for renewal at the option of either party.

- Agreement provide for restriction on sub lease.
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Note 16: Lease liabilities (Contd..)

Future minimum lease payments that the Company is expected to receive under the non-cancellable lease are as under:

Within one year

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
43.47 -

Beyond one year future minimum lease payments that the Company is expected to receive under the non-cancellable lease

is ¥ Nil. (Previous Year: ¥ Nil)

Note 17: Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Security Deposits 130.08 123.70
130.08 123.70
Note 18: Non-Current Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Provision for Employee Benefits:
- Cratuity [Refer Note 28 11 (B) (iii)(@)] 974.42 111217
- Compensated Absences [Refer Note 28 Il1] 714.42 964.65
- Provident Fund [Refer Note 28 11 (B) (iii)(b)] 472.37 282.23
2,161.21 2,359.05
Note 19: Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) [Net]
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Deferred Tax Liabilities: (A)
Difference between carrying value of property, plant and equipment and (346.37) (1,432.07)
written down value as per tax
Deferred Tax Assets: (B)
Impact of indexation on leasehold land 1,311.06 1,170.59
Voluntary retirement obligation 392.66 -
Expenses allowable on payment basis for tax purposes 3,675.55 1,659.88
Employee benefits 1,292.56 1,336.86
Impairment of trade receivables 150.07 149.00
Net Deferred Tax Assets (A+B) 6,475.53 2,884.26
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Note 19: Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) [Net]

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)
Opening balance as at beginning of the year 2,884.26 1,729.72
Tax income during the year recognised in profit or loss [Refer Note 31 (a)] 3,599.00 990.07
Tax income during the year recognised in OCI (7.74) 164.47
Closing balance as at year end 6,475.53 2,884.26
Note 20: Other Non-Current Liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Payable under Voluntary Retirement Scheme 36.10 4015
36.10 40.15
Note 21: Trade Payables
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 703.69 1,269.34
(Refer Note 42)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 87,486.70 74,843.06
small enterprises
88,190.39 76,112.40
Trade Payables 77178.08 65,683.91
Trade Payable to related parties (Refer Note 37) 11,012.31 10,428.49
88,190.39 76,112.40
Trade payables ageing schedules*
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Current but not due 653.47 892.66
Less than 1year 50.22 34118
1-2 years - 35.50
Total 703.69 1,269.34
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Note 21: Trade Payables (Contd..)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Unbilled 58,518.74 50,323.97
Current but not due 1,196.68 6,338.18
Less than 1year 27,599.64 17,976.48
1-2 years 0.89 20.09
2-3 years 717 16.39
More than 3 years 163.58 167.95
Total 87,486.70 74,843.06
Total Undisputed Trade payables
Unbilled 58,518.74 50,323.97
Current but not due 1,850.15 7,230.84
Less than 1year 27,649.86 18,317.66
1-2 years 0.89 55.59
2-3 years 717 16.39
More than 3 years 163.58 167.95
Total 88,190.39 76,112.40
There are no disputed trade payables.
* Outstanding for the above periods are based on due date of payment
Note 22: Other Current Financial Liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Dividends*:
- Other Unpaid Dividends** 3,558.10 3,308.19
Unpaid Balance for Share Capital Reduction** 87.49 85.65
Capital Creditors 496.74 379.58
4,142.33 3,773.42

*There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at the year

end as per the Company records.

** Considered for movement in liabilities arising from financing activities in cash flow.

Note 23: Other Current Liabilities

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)

Payable towards Statutory Liabilities 3,956.10 5,463.49
Employee Benefits Payable 7,430.11 6,486.95
Payable under Voluntary Retirement Scheme - 316
Advances from Customers 1,196.49 835.21
12,582.70 12,788.81
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R inlakhs) (R in lakhs)
Provision for Employee Benefits :
- Provident Fund [Refer Note 28 Il (B) (iii) (b)] 402.05 649.65
- Compensated Absences [Refer Note 28 11] 84.42 318.47
Others:
- Provision for Statutory Liabilities [Refer Note (A)] 4,349.76 3,545.72
- Other Matter [Refer Note (B)] 5,026.99 4,537.27
9,863.22 9,051.11
(A) Provision for statutory liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Opening Balance 3,545.72 3,292.25
Add: Provision made 961.52 976.76
Less: Provision Utilised/Reversed (157.48) (723.29)
Closing Balance 4,349.76 3,545.72

Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with

relevant authorities.

(B) Other Matter

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(Z in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)

Opening Balance 4,537.27 4,099.61
Add: Provision made 489.72 437.66
Closing Balance 5,026.99 4,537.27

Provision for other matter represents claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt that may materialise in

respect of matter of a Leased Property in dispute (Refer note 33).

Note 25: Revenue from Operations

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(R in lakhs) (R in lakhs)

Revenue from Contract with Customers :
- Sale of Products (net of GST) 5,64,418.01 5,18,786.36

Other Operating Revenue

- Service Income 3,177.93 3,202.55
- Scrap Sales 446.90 630.80
5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
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Disaggregated revenue information

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
1) Type of goods or service
Personal Care (Including Oral Care) 5,64,418.01 5,18,786.36
Research and Development Service Income 3,177.93 3,202.55
Scrap Sales 446.90 630.80
5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
2) Geographical
India 5,47,011.25 4,99,789.24
QOutside India 21,031.59 22,830.47
5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
3) Timing of revenue recognition
Sale on transfer of goods to customer at a point in time 5,64,864.91 5,19,417.16
Service Income as and when services rendered 3,177.93 3,202.55
5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
4) Revenue
External customer 5,54,043.67 5,05,918.80
Related Party 13,999.17 16,700.91
5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71
Contract balances
Trade receivables* 16,738.93 15,736.61
Contract Liability - Advances from Customers** 1,196.49 835.21

*Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and on credit allowed to certain customers. As on March 31, 2024, % 596.27 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - ¥ 592.02 lakhs)

is recognised as allowance for doubtful debts.

**Contract Liability represents short term advances received from customer to deliver the goods. The company has recognised revenue of ¥ 835.21 lakhs

(March 31, 2023 - % 873.50 lakhs) that was included in contract liability balance at the beginning of the year.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit
and loss with the contracted price at net of discount and rebates
Revenue (Refer Note below) net of on invoice discount 6,22,762.55 5,74,643.51
Sales return (2,956.35) (2,905.69)
Variable Consideration - off invoice (51,763.36) (49,118.11)
Revenue from contract with customers 5,68,042.84 5,22,619.71

Note - Sales as per contracted price before discounts % 649,375.99 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023

% 597,959.77 Lakhs)

Performance obligation

The Company’s revenue contracts represent a single performance obligation to sell its products to trade customers. Sales are
recorded at contracted price at the time control of the products is transferred to trade customers, in an amount that reflects
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the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for the products. Control is the ability of trade
customers to direct the use of and obtain the benefit from our products. In evaluating the timing of the transfer of control
of products to trade customers, the Company considers transfer of significant risks and rewards of products and the
probability of flowing of future economic benefit to the entity as per the terms of the Contract which usually co-incide with
the delivery of the goods. The performance obligation for service Income is satisfied as and when the service is performed.

The payment terms include advance payment and credit given to certain customers.

The nature of goods includes personal care (including oral care) and Research and Development service income.

Variable consideration

Variable consideration includes sales returns, trade discounts, volume based incentives, and cost of promotional programs,

indirect taxes as may be applicable.

Note 26: Other Income

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(X in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

Interest income on Financial Assets at Amortised cost 7,129.68 3,990.35
Interest income from Unwinding of discount on security deposits 158.59 109.91
Lease Rentals (Refer Note 16) 258.69 248.06
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 37.34 264.37
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 31.28
Provisions no Longer Required Written Back - 90.65
Miscellaneous Income 67.90 622.97
7,652.20 5,357.59

Note 27: Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Z in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)
Opening Stock

Finished Goods 16,880.22 15,024.03
Stock-in-Trade 2,665.81 4,698.07
Work-in-Progress 2,009.57 2,225.44
21,555.60 21,947.54

Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods 15,069.96 16,880.22
Stock-in-Trade 1,666.70 2,665.81
Work-in-Progress 2,770.68 2,009.57
19,507.34 21,555.60
2,048.26 391.94
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 36,331.39 33,258.61
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds 3,019.27 2,756.32
Share Based Payments to Employees [Refer Note 38 (c)] 1,204.21 971.91
Compensated Absences [Refer Il below] 19.84 210.08
Staff Welfare Expenses 598.13 500.07
41172.84 37,696.99
I Defined Contribution Plans

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

Charge to Statement of Profit and Loss for Defined Contribution Plans:
- Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund 197.36 202.00
- Employers' Contribution to Superannuation Fund 12112 13.74
- Employers' Contribution to Employee's State Insurance 27.45 39.41
- Employers' Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995 305.23 314.98
Employers' Contribution to National Pension Scheme 136.73 115.67
Total (Included in Employee Benefits Expense - Contribution to Provident 787.89 785.80

Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds)

Il Defined Benefit Plans

Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Funded Scheme), Provident Fund (Funded Scheme) and accrued liability towards
Pension Scheme (Non-Funded Scheme). In accordance with Ind AS 19, Actuarial valuation was performed in respect of
the aforesaid defined benefit plans.

A) Significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.25% 7.50%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 7.00% 7.00%

B) Balance Sheet Amounts
i) Balance sheet amounts- Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Company policy. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of Gratuity is payable on retirement/
termination of the employee's based on last drawn basic salary per month multiplied for the number of years
GRI 2-21
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of service. The Company has established ‘Colgate-Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Workmen’ and ‘Colgate-
Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Non-Workmen’ to which the Company makes contribution.

®inlakhs)
Present value Fair value of
q N Net Amount
Particulars of obligation plan assets (A)(B)
(A) (B)
Opening Balance as at April 1, 2022 9,564.38 9,246.88 317.50
Current service cost (i) 774.48 - 774.48
Interest expense/(income) (ii) 669.51 661.05 8.46
Total amount recognised in the 1,443.99 661.05 782.94
Statement of Profit and Loss (i+ii)
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts - (303.70) 303.70
included in interest expense/(income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (9.60) - (9.60)
assumptions
Gains from change in financial assumptions (324.70) - (324.70)
Experience Gains 359.83 - 359.83
Total amount recognised in other 25.53 (303.70) 329.23
comprehensive loss
Employers contributions = 317.50 (317.50)
Benefit payments (1,073.88) (1,073.88) -
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2023 9,960.02 8,847.85 111217
®in lakhs)

Present value

Fair value of

Net Amount

Particulars of obligation plan assets

(A) (B) (A)-(B)
Opening Balance as at April 1, 2023 9,960.02 8,847.85 111217
Current service cost (i) 809.36 - 809.36
Interest expense/(income) (ii) 72510 656.68 68.42
Total amount recognised in the 1,534.46 656.68 877.78
Statement of Profit and Loss (i+ii)
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts - 399.52 (399.52)
included in interest (income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic - - -
assumptions
Gains from change in financial 290.85 - 290.85
assumptions
Experience Gains 205.30 - 205.30
Total amount recognised in other 496.15 399.52 96.63
comprehensive loss
Employers contributions - 1,112.16 1,1M2.16)
Benefit payments (1,084.56) (1,084.56) -
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,906.07 9,931.65 974.42
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ii) Balance sheet amounts- Provident Fund

The Company has established ‘Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited Provident Fund’ in respect of certain
employees to which both the employee and the employer make contribution. Such contribution to the
provident fund for all employees, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of any liability
arising due to shortfall between the return from its investments and the guaranteed specified interest rate,
the same is provided for by the Company. The actuary has provided an actuarial valuation and the interest
shortfall liability if any has been provided in the books of accounts after considering the assets available with

the Company's Provident Fund Trust. The guaranteed rate of return (p.a) is 8.25% ( March 31,2023 - 8.15%).

R in lakhs)
Present value Fair value of
q . . Net Amount
Particulars of obligation plan assets (A)-(B)
(A) (B)
Opening Balance as at April 1, 2022 30,012.59 29,404.97 607.62
Current service cost 1,078.87 - 1,078.87
Interest expense 2,232.63 2,248.00 (15.37)
Total amount recognised in the 3,311.50 2,248.00 1,063.50
Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurements
(Gain)/loss due to Mark to market - 607.61 (607.61)
Gain from change in financial assumptions (157.72) - (157.72)
Experience losses (121.66) (1,377.33) 1,255.67
Shortfall arising on account of asset - - -
diminution.
Total amount recognised in other (279.38) (769.72) 490.34
comprehensive loss
Contributions:
Employers - 1,204.31 (1,204.31)
Employees 1,910.54 1,910.54 -
Payment for plan:
Benefit payments (1,246.97) (1,246.97) -
Settlements 249.85 249.85 -
Actual Employer contribution towards - (125.44) 125.44
interest rate guarantee
Adjustment to recognize the effects of - 150.71 (150.71)
plan assets at book value
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2023 33,958.13 33,026.25 931.88
R in lakhs)
Present value Fair value of
. .. Net Amount
Particulars of obligation plan assets (A)-(B)
(A) (B)
Opening Balance as at April 1, 2023 33,958.13 33,026.25 931.88
Current service cost 1,300.74 - 1,300.74
Interest expense 2,57117 2,501.27 69.90
Total amount recognised in the 3,871.91 2,501.27 1,370.64

Statement of Profit and Loss
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R in lakhs)
Present value Fair value of
. .. Net Amount
Particulars of obligation plan assets (A)-(B)
(A) (B)
Remeasurements
Gain from change in financial 216.47 - 216.47
assumptions
Experience losses 977.78 1,321.61 (343.83)
Total amount recognised in other 1,194.25 1,321.61 (127.36)
comprehensive loss
Contributions:
Employers - 1,300.74 (1,300.74)
Employees 1,924.33 1,924.33 -
Payment for plan:
Benefit payments (1,901.16) (1,901.16) -
Settlements (675.76) (675.76) -
Actual Employer contribution towards - - -
interest rate guarantee
Adjustment to recognize the effects of - - -
plan assets at book value
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2024 38,371.70 37,497.28 874.42
(iii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (Funded Scheme)
a) Gratuity
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zinlakhs Zin lakhs
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 10,906.07 9,960.02
Fair Value of Funded Plan Assets as at the end of the year (9,931.65) (8,847.85)
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 974.42 111217

[Included in Non Current Provisions ¥97442 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 - ¥1,112.17 Lakhs) (Refer Note 18)]

b) Provident Fund (Funded Scheme)

Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Zin lakhs Zinlakhs
Present Value of Obligation of Funded Plan as at the end of 38,371.70 33,95813
the year
Fair Value of Funded Plan Assets as at the end of the year (37,497.28) (33,026.25)
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 874.42 931.88

Note - Plan assets for Provident fund trust have been valued at cost or fair market value whichever is lower.

[Included in Non Current Provisions ¥ 472.37 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - ¥ 282.23) (Refer Note 18) and in
Current Provisions ¥ 402.05 lakhs (March 31, 2023 T 649.65 lakhs) (Refer Note 24)]
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B 074

(iv) Percentage of each category of Plan Assets to Total Fair Value of Plan Assets

b)

)

i)

a) Gratuity
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% %
Category of Assets (% Allocation)
Government of India Securities 0% 0%
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 99%
Others 0% 1%
Provident Fund
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% %
Category of Assets (% Allocation)
Government of India Securities 47% 47 %
Other Debt Instruments 35% 37%
Equity instruments 16% 13%
Others 2% 3%
Sensitivity Analysis
Gratuity
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate:
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -5.23% -5.10%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 5.67% 5.52%
Salary Escalation Rate:
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 5.55% 5.49%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO -5.23% -5.14%
Provident Fund
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Guaranteed Rate of Return:
Impact of increase in 100 bps on DBO 4.04% 3.55%
Impact of decrease in 100 bps on DBO -1.41% -0.95%
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D) Projected Plan Cash flow:

The expected contribution payable to the Gratuity plan for the next year is ¥ 400 Lakhs. The expected contribution
payable to the Provident Fund plan for the next year is % 1,391.78 lakhs.

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows for Gratuity is 10.88 years (March 31, 2023 :
10.61 years). The weighted average duration to the payment is for Provident Fund plan is 12.42 years (March 31,
2023 :12.36 years)

Expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the Year Ended

current membership of the plan: Gratuity March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than a year 513.36 58417
Between 1- 2 years 905.56 411.60
Between 2- 5 years 1,865.60 2,082.80
Between 5- 9 years 3,477.44 3,636.61
10 years and above 21,677.66 19,806.12

Il Other Employee Benefit - Compensated Absences
The liability for Compensated Absences as at the year end is ¥ 798.84 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : % 1,283.12 Lakhs).

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(X in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Includedin:

Non-Current Provisions (Refer Note 18) 714.42 964.65
Current Provisions (Refer Note 24) 84.42 318.47
798.84 1,283.12

Movement of Compensated Absences:
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,283.12 1,483.10
Add: Charge during the year 19.84 210.08
Less: Amount paid during the year* 50412 410.06
Balance at the end of the year 798.84 1,283.12

*One time accumulated leave balances related to HO employees are paid in March 2024 and April 2024 and there is no further carry forward for

unused leaves.

Note 29 : Finance Costs

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(X in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)

Interest expense 499.63 491.38
499.63 491.38
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
Consumption of Stores and Spares 2,724.44 2,561.36
Processing Charges 574.53 976.12
Power and Fuel 4,850.75 4,744.34
Freight and Forwarding Charges 15,043.61 15,287.70
Lease Rentals (Refer Note 16) 471.99 491.56
Rates and Taxes 195.95 255.26
Insurance 681.71 748.71
Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 4,609.74 4,530.90
- Buildings 231.28 277.39
- Others 132.52 156.67
4,973.54 4,964.96
Advertising 76,041.84 63,407.44
Fees and Commission to Independent Directors 200.50 177.50
Auditors' Remuneration [Refer Note (A) below] 116.82 110.31
Royalty
- Royalty Expense 23,791.96 22,863.84
- Withholding tax on Royalty 4,198.07 2,802.80
27,990.03 25,666.64
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility 2,786.82 2,538.00
[Refer Note (B) below]
Bad Debts Written Off 10.95 3.29
Provision for Doubtful Debts 4.25 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25.04 -
Travel and Conference Expenses 2,871.87 2,943.29
Qutside Services 15,880.65 14,085.81
Miscellaneous 9,045.19 11,839.75
1,64,490.48 1,50,802.04
(A) Auditors' Remuneration (excluding Goods and
Services Tax) :
As Auditor :
- Statutory Audit 66.00 64.00
- Limited Review 31.00 31.00
- Tax Audit 12.00 12.00
Reimbursement of Expenses 7.81 3.31
116.81 110.31
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(Z in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)
(I) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 2,786.82 2,535.12
(I Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 2,786.82 2,538.00
(IlN) CSR expenditure during the year:
(A) Amount paid in cash -
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above:
Administrative Overheads 92.31 -
- Social Impact Assessment of CSR Programs 36.22 4010
- Promoting Preventive Health Care 1,528.12 634.06
- Water Access and Water Augmentation for livelihoods and 200.00 530.15
Women Empowerment
- Empowering Youth through Education/Career Building - 780.50
Opportunities /Sports program
- Smiles for Life - Program on Cleft Surgeries 300.00 =
- Waste Management 100.00 =
- Financial & Digital Literacy for Women & PwD & community 250.00 -
support
(B) Amount unspent -
- Promoting preventive health care 280.17 553.19
2,786.82 2,538.00

(IV) Details of unspent amount along with details of ongoing projects as per section 135(6)

i) Details of unspent amount for ongoing projects as per section 135(6)

q Amount Amount spent .
Opening Balance required to during the year Closing Balance
be spent
With In Separate during the Fror’n From Separate With In Separate
Company CSR Unspent year Company'’s CSR Unspent Company* CSR Unspent
Alc bank A/c Alc Alc
- 553.19 2,786.82 2,506.65 553.19 280.17 =

* Subsequent to year end, the amount is deposited in separate CSR unspent account in compliance with the provisions of section 135(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013

i) Details of movement in provisions

Opening Provision Spent during the year Current Year Provision Closing Provision

55319 55319 280.17 280.17

V) There are no amounts contributed to any trust, society or Section 8 company which controlled by the Company in
relation to CSR expenditures as per Indian Accounting Standard 24 - Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24).
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Z in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profit for the year 49,365.56 37,242.69
Total current tax expenses 49,365.56 37,242.69
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,599.00) (990.07)
Income tax expenses 45,766.56 36,252.62
(b)Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India's tax rate:
Profit before income tax expense 1,78,132.52 1,40,967.27
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (March 31,2023 - 25.168%) 44,832.39 35,478.64
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (allowable) in calculating
taxable income:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 954.96 794.77
Income considered under separate head of income (20.79) (20.79)
Income tax expense 45,766.56 36,252.62
(c) Amounts Recognised directly in Equity
Current Tax Impact arising in the reporting period in respect of 82.99 68.02
distribution of Employee Stock Option directly recognised in Equity
(d) Current Tax Assets (Net)
Current Tax Assets (Net) [Net of Provision of Tax 3 204,240.90 lakhs, 29,789.33 29,788.98
March 31, 2023 : ¥ 204,240.90 lakhs]
(e) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) [Net of Advance Tax payments 7,935.65 5,515.71
¥198,387.73 lakhs, March 31, 2023 : ¥151,524.25 lakhs]
Note 32: Contingent Liabilities
(To the extent not provided for)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
- Excise and Related Matters 2,372.33 5,358.74
- GST Matters 14913 687.22
- Custom Matters 221.70 221.70
- Service Tax Matters 1,399.13 1,399.14
- Sales Tax Matters 830.82 1,217.20
- Income Tax Matters 1,26,435.00 92,207.57
- Commercial Matters 15.00 15.00

Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with the

relevant authorities.
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For certain years for which the Company has received favourable orders from the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT)
quashing outstanding demand of % 53,943.87 lakhs, the Income Tax Department has preferred further appeals with the
High Court which are yet to be admitted in the High Court.

Note 33: Demand notices in relation to leased property

During the year, the Company has further received demand notices of ¥ 1,385.90 Lakhs (X 9,775.91 Lakhs for March 31,
2023) from lessor in respect of leased property at Sewri resulting into total outstanding demand of % 13,030.48 Lakhs as at
March 31, 2024 (% 11,644.58 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023), for increase in the rentals with retrospective effect from October
01, 2012. The Company is seeking explanation from authorities in relation to such demands and basis legal opinion
obtained by the Company, the Company believes that such demand is exorbitant and not tenable before the Court of Law.

Note 34: Capital Commitments

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

(Z in lakhs) (Z in lakhs)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 1,722.52 1,190.53

and not provided for [net of capital advances of ¥ 61.63 Lakhs (March 31,
2023 :¥ 594.44 Lakhs) (Refer Note 6)]

Note 35: Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. ‘Personal Care (including Oral Care)' which primarily
includes products such as Soaps, Cosmetics and Toilet Preparations and the activities incidental thereto within India, hence
does not have any reportable Segments as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". The performance of the Company is
mainly driven by sales made locally and hence, no separate geographical segment is identified.

Note 36: Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(R in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
i) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share ])
Profit for the year  Lakhs) 1,32,365.96 1,04,714.65
Weighted average number of outstanding shares for Basic and Diluted EPS 27,19,85,634 27,19,85,634
(Nos.)
Nominal Value of shares outstanding (%) 1 1
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share }) 48.67 38.50
i) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Opening Balance 27,19,85,634 27,19,85,634
Increase / (Decrease) during the year - -
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator for 27,19,85,634 27,19,85,634

calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
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Note 37: Disclosure of Related Parties

A) Ultimate Holding Company : Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A.

B) Group Companies where common control exists  : Colgate-Palmolive Mktg. SDN BHD, Malaysia
: Colgate-Palmolive East Africa Ltd., Kenya
: Colgate-Palmolive DEL Ecuador S.A
: Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd., South Africa
: Colgate-Palmolive (Thailand) Ltd., Thailand
: Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Ltd., Wan Chai, Hongkong (Formerly
known as Colgate-Palmolive Management Services HK Ltd)
: Colgate-Palmolive (China) Co. Ltd., China
: Colgate Palmolive (Vietnam) Ltd, Vietnam
: Colgate Sanxiao Company Limited, China*
: Colgate-Palmolive Peru SA
: Colgate-Palmolive Ukraine TOV
: Colgate-Palmolive (Burlington) Limited*
: Colgate Palmolive Temizlik Urunleri Sanayi ve Ticaret S.A., Turkey
: Colgate-Palmolive Cameroun S.A., Cameroun*
: Colgate-Palmolive (Eastern) Pte. Ltd., Singapore*
: Colgate-Palmolive IndUstrial Ltda., Brazil
: Norwood International Incorporated, U.S.A*
: Colgate-Palmolive Tanzania Limited, Tanzania
: Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd., Boksburg, South Africa.
: Colgate Global Business Services Pvt Ltd, India
: Colgate-Palmolive Zambia Inc., Zambia*
: Colgate-Palmolive Services (Poland) Sp.z.0.0, Poland
: Colgate-Palmolive Europe SARL, Italy*
: Colgate Palmolive Bt. Ltd., (Blantyre), Malawi*
: Colgate-Palmolive CACE Region, Istanbul, Turkey*
: Colgate-Palmolive Senegal, Senegal*
: Colgate Philippines Inc., Philippines
: Colgate-Palmolive Mocambique Limitada*
: Colgate-Palmolive Ghana Ltd, Ghana*
: Colgate-Palmolive Europe Sarleu Div
: CP Middle East Exports Ltd
: Colgate-Palmolive (Myanmar) Limited, Myanmar
: Hill'S Pet Nutrition Asia Limited*
: Colgate-Palmolive Arabia Ltd.
: Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd.,Australia
: Colgate-Palmolive (Russia) Ltd., Russia
: Hypo Homecare Products Limited, Nigeria
: Colgate Tolaram LFTZ Enterprise
: Colgate-Palmolive IHQ Services Thailand
: Colgate- Palmolive ACI Bangladesh Private Limited
: Hawley & Hazel (ZHONGSHAN) CO,,Ltd.

C) Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
(i) Executive Directors : Prabha Narasimhan
: M.S. Jacob
: M. Chandrashekhar (Up to June 30, 2022)
: R.Raghavan (Up to April 15, 2022)
: S.Sharma
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(ii) Non-Executive and Non Independent Directors : M. Deoras
(i) Non-Executive and Independent Directors : V.S. Mehta
: I. Shahani
: S. Gopinath
: S.Kripalu
: G.Pant
: S.Natarajan
: I. Bhushan - Appointed w.e.f July 26, 2023
: S. Gupta - Appointed w.e.f Jan 22, 2024
(iv) Company Secretary : S.Sharma

D) Post Employment Benefit Funds : Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited Provident Fund
: Colgate-Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Workmen

: Colgate-Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Non-Workmen
* There are no transactions with the Company during the current year

() Transactions entered into with Parties referred to in Category A and B zin lakhs
Partiesreferredtoin  Parties referred to in Total
Category A Category B
Nature of Transaction Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, March31, March31, March31, March31, March31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Purchase of Goods/Materials
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited - - 2,163.16 3,726.19 2,163.16 3,726.19
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 2,307.78 622.82 - - 2,307.78 622.82
Others - - 131.82 180.87 131.82 180.87
Sub-Total 2,307.78 622.82 2,294.98 3,907.06 4,602.76 4,529.88
Sale of Goods/Materials
Hypo Homecare Products Limited, - - - 768.48 - 768.48
Nigeria
Colgate-Palmolive Europe Sarleu Div - - 7,030.58 8,044.17 7,030.58 8,044.17
Colgate-Palmolive East Africa Ltd., Kenya - - 613.22 44591 613.22 44591
Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd., South Africa - - 69.81 24013 69.81 240.13
Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd., Boksburg - - 1,612.21 1,584.87 1,612.21 1,584.87
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited - - - 375.97 - 375.97
Colgate Tolaram LFTZ Enterprises - - 97.57 - 97.57 -
Colgate- Palmolive ACI Bangladesh = = 538.63 = 538.63 -
Private Limited
Others - - 859.21 2,038.11 859.21 2,038.11
Sub-Total - - 10,821.23 13,497.64 10,821.23 13,497.64
Purchase of Fixed Assets/Spares
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. M3.77 - - - M3.77 -
Hawley & Hazel (ZHONGSHAN) CO.,Ltd. - - 3.29 - 3.29
Sub-Total 113.77 - 3.29 - 117.06 -
Services Rendered (inclusive of Goods
and Service Tax)
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 3,553.81 3,618.41 - - 3,553.81 3,618.41
Others - - 305.26 292.71 305.26 292.71
Sub-Total 3,553.81 3,618.41 305.26 292.71 3,859.07 3,911.12
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Zinlakhs
Parties referred to in Parties referred to in Total
Category A Category B
Nature of Transaction Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, March31, March31, March31, March31, March31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Services Received
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 8,704.92 9,57718 - - 8,704.92 9,57718
Colgate Global Business Services Pvt - - 9141 1,219.95 91411 1,219.95
Ltd., India
Sub-Total 8,704.92 9,577.18 914.11 1,219.95 9,619.03 10,797.13
Reimbursement of Expenses Charged
by the Company/(on the Company)
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. (4,755.23) (4,531.35) - - (4,755.23) (4,531.35)
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited - - (596.76) (788.88) (596.76) (788.88)

Others = = 236.88 281.15 236.88 281.15

Sub-Total (4,755.23) (4,531.35) (359.88) (507.73) (5,115.11) (5,039.08)
Dividend Paid

Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 46,849.66  42,491.55 = - 46,849.66 42,491.55
Colgate-Palmolive (Asia) Pte. Ltd., - - 12,796.31  11,605.95 12,796.31 11,605.95
Singapore

Norwood International Incorporated, - - 0.48 0.44 0.48 0.44
U.S.A.

Sub-Total 46,849.66 42,491.55 12,796.79 11,606.39 59,646.45 54,097.94

Royalty [exclusive of withholding tax
of 34,198.07 lakhs (March 31, 2023 -
¥2,802.80 lakhs)]

Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A.
Sub-Total

23,791.96 22,863.84 - - 23,791.96 22,863.84
23,791.96 22,863.84 - - 23,791.96 22,863.84

(ii) Transactions entered into with Parties referred to in Category C

Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Executive Directors

Remuneration 1,191.22 1,451.39
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds* 48.49 41.75
Share Based Payments 544.27 161.84
Sub Total 1,783.98 1,654.98
*As the liabilities for defined benefit plan are provided based on actuarial

valuation for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key

managerial persons are not included.

- Executive Directors

Prabha Narasimhan 917.02 419.40
M. S. Jacob 492.54 489.94
R. Raghavan - 186.76
M. Chandrasekar - 266.50
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Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
S.Sharma 374.42 292.38
Sub Total 1,783.98 1,654.98
- Independent Directors
Sitting Fees and Commission Paid
V.S. Mehta 32.50 29.50
I. Shahani 33.50 29.50
S. Gopinath 30.50 30.00
S. Kripalu 32.00 29.50
G. Pant 32.00 29.50
I. Bhushan 6.50 =
S. Natrajan 31.50 29.50
S.Gupta 2.00 =
Sub Total 200.50 177.50
(i) Transactions entered into with Parties referred to in Category D
Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution made by the Company in the following funds:
Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited Provident Fund 1,300.74 1,204.31
Colgate-Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Workmen 400.65 14613
Colgate-Palmolive India Gratuity Fund for Non-Workmen 711.51 171.37
Zinlakhs
Parties referred toin  Parties referred to in Total
Category A Category B
Outstanding Balances As at As at As at
March 31, March31, March31, March31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Trade Receivables
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 931.24 899.58 - - 931.24 899.58
Hypo - Homecare Product Ltd. = = 2.50 2.47 2.50 2.47
Colgate-Palmolive Pty. Ltd., Boksburg - - 338.88 433.09 338.88 433.09
Colgate Palmolive Europe Sarl Ltd. - - 1,251.82 1,067.35 1,251.82 1,067.35
Colgate-Palmolive South Africa - - 13.15 57.64 13.15 57.64
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited - - 12.39 11.00 12.39 11.00
Others - - 595.42 888.56 595.42 888.56
Sub-Total (Refer Note 8) 931.24 899.58 2,214.16 2,460.11 3,145.40  3,359.69
Trade Payables
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 8,933.20 8,033.78 - - 8,933.20 8,033.78
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited, - - 1,829.48 2,118.15 1,829.48 2,118.15
Hongkong
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Zinlakhs
Parties referred toin  Parties referred to in Total
Category A Category B
Outstanding Balances As at As at As at
March 31, March31, March31, March31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Colgate Global Business Services Pvt - - 212.23 180.65 212.23 180.65
Limited, India
Others - - 37.39 95.91 37.39 95.91
Sub-Total (Refer Note 21) 8,933.20 8,033.78 2,079.10 2,394.71 11,012.30 10,428.49
Other Receivables (included in Other
Current Financial Assets)
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. 83.26 112.04 = = 83.26 112.04
Colgate-Palmolive Asia Pacific Limited, - - 143.82 185.98 143.82 185.98
Hongkong
Colgate-Palmolive (Myanmar) Limited - - - 14.81 - 14.81
Colgate Palmolive Pty (LTD) = = 2.47 2.31 2.47 2.31
Others = = 39.21 95.84 39.21 95.84
Sub-Total (Refer Note 12) 83.26 112.04 185.50 298.94 268.76 410.98

Terms and conditions:

Transactions relating to dividends and bonus shares were on the same terms and conditions that apply to other
Shareholders.

Goods and Services procured or provided from/ to related parties are generally priced at arm’s length. Other
reimbursement of expenses to/ from related parties is on Cost basis.

All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable/ receivable in cash.

Note 38: Share Based Payments

(a) Employee option plan

The Company does not provide any equity-based compensation to its employees. However, the parent company,
Colgate-Palmolive Company, U.S.A. ("the grantor") maintains equity incentive plans that provide for the grant of stock-
based awards to its executive directors and certain categories of officers and employees. The Parent's Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, as well as restricted stock units. Exercise prices in
the case of non-qualified and incentive stock options are not less than the fair value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant.

A stock option gives an employee, the right to purchase shares of Colgate-Palmolive Company common stock at a
fixed price for a specific period of time. Stock options generally have a term of six years from the date of grant and
vest over a period of three years.

A restricted stock unit provides an employee with a share of Colgate-Palmolive Company common stock upon vesting.
Restricted stock units vest generally over a period of three years. Dividends will accrue with each restricted stock unit
award granted subsequent to the grant date.
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The details pertaining to number of options, weighted average price and assumptions considered for fair value are
disclosed below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars Weighted Number of Weighted Number of

Average . Average .
. . options . . options

Exercise price Exercise price

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,408 219464 5183 3,07,490
Options granted/transferred during the year 5,895 37,801 5,684 83,985
Exercised during the year 4,805 (32,082) 4,865 (61,762)
Transferred to other group companies during the year 5,659 (17,408) 5,295 (1,10,249)
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 5,569 2,07,775 5,408 2,19,464
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year 115,317 112,638

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2024
was ¥ 6,231/- (March 31, 2023 :3 6,527/-)

har tion tstanding at the end of th r have the following expir t nd exerci ri

G Expiry Y E . . - March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

rant year Xpiry Year xercise price () Number of options  Number of options
2014 - 2016 2019 - 2022 3,907 - 4,890 - -
2017 - 2018 2020 - 2024 4,440 - 4,729 26,423 54,645
2019 2027 - 2029 5,153 27,958 29,969
2020-2023 2025 - 2031 5,658 - 5,990 1,53,394 1,34,850
Total 2,07,775 219,464
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding 4.75 Year 4.94 Years

at end of year

Fair Value of options granted

The fair value at the grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31, 2024 was % 1,224.59 per option
(March 31, 2023 : % 1,115.19 per option). The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes Model which
takes into account the exercise price, expected volatility, option's life, the share price at grant date, expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for the options granted during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected volatility (%) 21.67% 21.14%
Expected life of the options 6 years 6 years
Risk free interest rate(%) 2.79% 2.99%
Crant Year 2022 2022
Expiry Year 2031 2031
Expected dividend (%) 2.52% 2.42%
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The risk free interest rates are determined based on the zero-coupon sovereign bond yields with maturity equal to the
expected term of the option. The expected volatility was determined based on the volatility of the equity share for the
period of one year prior to issue of the option. Volatility calculation is based on historical stock prices using standard
deviation of daily change in stock price. The historical period is taken into account to match the expected life of the
option. Dividend yield has been calculated taking into account expected rate of dividend on equity share price as on
grant date.

(b) Restricted Stock Units (RSU's)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. Weighted
Particulars Weighted Number of Average Number of
Average Grant . .
. Units Grant date Units
date Fair value .
Fair value
Units outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,844 39,236 5,469 43156
Units granted / transferred during the year 5,822 21,567 5,916 26,407
Exercised during the year 5,856 (13,704) 4,583 (10,969)
Transferred to other group companies during the year 5,785 (3,090) 5,517 (19,358)
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Units outstanding at the end of the year 5,833 44,009 5,844 39,236

Restricted Stock Units outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Weighted average remaining contractual life of RSUs outstanding at end 1.72 Years 1.79 Years
of year

The weighted average fair value at the date of exercise of RSU's exercised during the year ended March 31, 2024 was
% 6,444 (March 31, 2023 : % 6,340)

(c) Expenses Arising from share based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in statement of profit and loss as part of
employee benefit expense were as follows:

B March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
articulars (% Lakhs) (2 Lakhs)
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 28) 1,204.21 971.91

Note 39: Fair value measurements

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instrument:
Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in active market.

Level 2 : Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1inputs; and

Level 3 : Inputs which are not based on observable market data.
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(i) Financial Instruments by Category and fair values of the same measured at amortised cost

R inlakhs)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying amount / Fair Value Carrying amount / Fair Value
FVPL Fvoc) Amortised FVPL Fvoc Amortised
cost cost
Financial Assets

(i) Investments - Non-Current - - - - - -
(i) Trade Receivable - - 16,738.93 - - 15,736.61
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 88,899.34 - - 80,605.68
(iv) Other Bank Balances - - 48,478.92 - - 11,693.84
(v) Loans - Current - - 666.50 - - 8,759.91
(vi) Loans - Non Current - - 96.91 - - 92.02
(vii) Receivable from Related Parties - - 268.76 - - 410.98
(viii)Security Deposits - Non-Current - - 1,429.87 - - 1,604.35
(ix) Security Deposits - Current - - 33313 - - 190.00
(x) Insurance Claim Receivables - - - - - 35.11
(xi) Deposits with Banks - - 251.96 - - 249.62
Total Financial Assets - - 1,57164.32 - - 1,19,378.12

Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables-Total outstanding - - 703.69 - - 1,269.34

dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(i) Trade payables-Total outstanding - - 87,486.70 - - 74,843.06
dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small

enterprises
(iii) Security Deposits - Non-Current - - 130.08 - - 123.70
(iv) Lease Liabilities - - 7,174.93 - - 6,896.15
(v) Capital Creditors - - 496.74 - - 379.58
(vi) Dividends (Including Unpaid) - - 3,558.10 - - 3,308.19
(vii) Unpaid Balance of Share Capital - - 87.49 - - 85.65
Reduction
Total Financial liabilities - - 99,637.73 - - 86,905.67

(i) Assets and Liabilities that are disclosed at Amortised Cost for which Fair values are disclosed are classified as Level 3.

Current financial asset and current financial liabilities have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due
to their short-term nature. Non current financial assets and non current financial liabilities have fair values that
approximate to their carrying amounts as it is based on the net present value of the anticipated future cash flows.

Note 40: Financial Risk Management

Inherent to the nature of the Company's business are a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risk and credit
risk. Developing policies and processes to assess, monitor, manage and address these risks is the responsibility of the
Company's Management. The Risk Management Committee oversees this risk management framework in the Company
and intervenes as necessary to ensure there exists an appropriate level of safeguards against the key risks. Updates on
compliance, exceptions and mitigating action are placed before the Audit Committee periodically. Risk management
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policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes like major changes in ERP systems or go to market model,
changes in organization structure, events denoting material change in the risk environment, etc.

The Company's Management works closely with its Treasury department and Internal Audit department to ensure there are
appropriate policies and procedures governing the operations of the Company with a view to providing assurance that
there is visibility into financial risks and that the business is being run in conformity with the stated risk objectives. Periodic
reviews with concerned stakeholders provides an insight into risks to the business associated with currency movements,
credit risks, commodity price fluctuations, etc. and necessary deliberations are undertaken to ensure there is an appropriate
response to the developments.

A MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company follows a conservative policy of ensuring sufficient liquidity at all times through a strategy of profitable
growth, efficient working capital management as well as prudent capital expenditure and dividend policies. The
Company has a overdraft facility with banks to support any temporary funding requirements. The Company is cognizant
of reputational risks that are associated with the liquidity risk and the risk is factored into the overall business strategy.

The Company's treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-
going basis to meet operational needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above
the amount required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash
equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits and debt investments with
appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date.

(R in lakhs)
Carrying  Payable on Lessthan 3 312 More than Total
Amount demand months months 12 months
As at March 31, 2024
(i) Trade payables 88,190.39 - 88,190.39 - - 88,190.39
(i) Security Deposits 130.08 = = = 130.08 130.08
(iii) Lease Liabilities 7174.93 - 305.06 91517 5,954.70 7174.93
(iv) Capital Creditors 496.74 - 496.74 - - 496.74
(v) Dividends (Including Unpaid) 3,558.10 3,558.10 - - - 3,558.10
(vi)Unpaid Balance of Share Capital 87.49 87.49 - - 87.49
Reduction
As at March 31,2023
(i) Trade payables 76,112.40 - 76,112.40 - - 76,112.40
(i) Security Deposits 123.70 - - - 123.70 123.70
(iii) Lease Liabilities 6,896.15 - 305.52 916.57  5,674.06 6,896.15
(iv) Capital Creditors 379.58 - 379.58 - - 379.58
(v) Dividends (Including Unpaid) 3,308.19 3,308.19 - - - 3,308.19
(vi)Unpaid Balance of Share Capital 85.65 85.65 - = = 85.65

Reduction
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MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of
financial instruments:

e currency risk;

e commodity price risk;

The above risks may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The
objective of the Company’s Management of market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while
optimising returns. The Company’s exposure to, and management of, these risks are explained below.

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

1.

CURRENCY RISK

MANAGEMENTPOLICY

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

The Company is subject to the risk of
changes in foreign currency values that
impact costs of imported raw material
(directly and by local suppliers), import of
finished goods, equipment for expansion at
the plants, expatriate costs, service income,
reimbursement of expenses, service related
charges from overseas related and third
parties as well as revenue from exports.
Receivable and Payable having foreign
currencies denomination in the balance
sheet will also be impacted.

As at March 31, 2024, the unhedged
exposure to the Company on holding
financial assets and liabilities other than in
its functional currency amounted to % 3,303
Lakhs and % 3,933 Lakhs respectively (March
31, 2023 : % 3,531 Lakhs and % 4,035 Lakhs)

The Company is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to USD, Euro, and Chinese
Yuan. The Company's business
model incorporates assumptions
on currency risks and ensures any
exposure is covered through the
normal business operations. This
intent has been achieved in all years
presented.

As an estimation of the
approximate impact of the
residual risk, with respect to
financial  instruments, the
Company has calculated the
impact of a 1% change in
exchange rates.

A 1% strengthening of the INR
against key currencies to which
the Company is exposed at
year end would have led to
approximately an additional
% 6.29 lakhs pre-tax gain in the
Statement of Profit and Loss
(2022-23 : % 5.04 lakhs pre-tax
gain). A 1% weakening of the
INR against these currencies
would have led to an equal but
opposite effect.

A 1% strengthening of the INR
against key currencies would
have led to approximately an
additional pre-tax gain of
% 809 lakhs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss (2022-23 :
% 865 Lakhs pre-tax gain). A 1%
weakening in currency prices
would have led to an equal but
opposite effect.
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Note 40: Financial Risk Management (Contd..)

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

2.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Company is exposed to the risk of
changes in commodity prices in relation to
its purchase of its raw materials especially
corn, carton board, resins and palm oils.

MANAGEMENT POLICY

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

The Company develops periodic
financial forecasts
commodity price forecasts by its

group
actions

Procurement
appropriate

impact of

based on

the financial modelling.

and
including
selling price changes and cost
saving measures to reduce the
commodity  price
changes is considered as part of

A 1% increase in commodity
prices would have led to
approximately ¥ 530 lakhs
additional loss in  the
Statement of Profit and Loss
(2022-23: T 601 Lakhs loss).
A 1%  weakening in
commodity prices would
have led to an equal but
opposite effect.

C MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or other counter-party fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, controls and approval processes. A majority of customers pay prior to
shipment, thereby reducing exposure to trade receivables significantly. Due to a large customer base, the Company is
not exposed to material concentration of credit risk. Basis the historical experience supported by the level of default,
the credit risk in case of trade receivable is low and so trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial
assets. (Refer Accounting Policy 1B (i) on trade receivables.)

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is ¥ 17,335.20 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024 and % 16,328.63 Lakhs as at
March 31, 2023.

(1) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision- Trade receivables
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R in lakhs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loss allowance at the beginning of the year 592.02 682.68

Add / (Less) : Changes in loss allowances 4.25 (90.66)

Loss allowance at the end of the year 596.27 592.02
Balance as on March 31, 2024

Ageing Not due 0-180 days >180 days Total

Gross carrying amount 8,969.29 7,337.51 1,028.40 17,335.20

Provision for doubtful debts - - (596.27) (596.27)

Carrying amount of trade receivables 8,969.29 7,337.51 43213 16,738.93

(net of Provision)
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Note 40: Financial Risk Management (Contd..)
Balance as on March 31, 2023

Ageing Not due 0-180 days >180 days Total
Gross carrying amount 9,468.48 5,952.15 908.00 16,328.63
Provision for doubtful debts - - (592.02) (592.02)
Carrying amount of trade receivables 9,468.48 5,952.15 315.98 15,736.61

(net of Provision)

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and investments in debt
instruments. The Company concentrates its major investment activities with a limited number of counter-parties which
have secure credit ratings, to reduce this risk. Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial
position, credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the
Company's Treasury department.

Note 41: Capital Management

The Company's objective in managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise
returns to our Shareholders. The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:

1) Share Capital, 2) Securities Premium and 3) Other Reserves comprising of General Reserve and Retained Earnings.

The Company's capital structure is based on the Managements assessment of the balances of key elements to ensure
strategic decisions and day to day activities. The capital structure of the Company is managed with a view of the overall
macro economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital structure with a focus to mitigate all existing and potential risks to the
Company, maintain Shareholder, vendor and market confidence and sustain continuous growth and development of the
Company.

The Company's focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as high financial
flexibility without impacting the risk profile of the Company.

In order, to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company will take appropriate steps as may be necessary. The
Company does not have any debt or financial covenants.

Note 42: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 ('MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 703.69 1,269.34
remaining unpaid as at year end*
(i) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 0 0]
unpaid as at year end
(iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 835.75 495,52

beyond the appointed day during the year
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Note 42: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 (cont.)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers 0 0
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under 0 0
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 713 3.04
payments already made**
(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0 0]
* The principal amount represents amount outstanding as per invoices received from vendors as at the Balance Sheet date.
** Includes interest on amounts outstanding as at the beginning of the accounting year.
Note 43: Ratio Analysis and its elements
. . March March % .
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31,2024 31,2023 Change Reason for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.54 1.43 8% -
Debt Equity ratio Total Debt Total Shareholder's 0.04 0.04 0% -
Equity
Debt Service Coverage  Earnings available  Debt Service** 78.92 64.24 23% -
ratio for Debt Service*
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after Average Shareholder's 0.74 0.61 21% -
taxes Equity
Inventory Turnover ratio  Cost of goods sold  Average inventory 5.45 5718 5% -
Trade Receivable Net Sales Average Trade 34.76 2716 28% Increasein
Turnover Receivable receivables driven
out of increase in
sales and change in
channel mix to new
retail channels
Trade Payable Turnover  Net Credit Average Trade Payable 2.05 2.31 MN% -
Purchases
Net Capital Turnover ratio Net Sales Working capital*** 8.49 1m.20 -24% -
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.23 0.20 15% -
Return on Capital Earnings before Capital Employed**** 0.99 0.84 18% -
employed interest and taxes
Return on Investment Income generated  Time weighted average 0.07 0.05 40% Higher return on

from Investments

Investments*****

investment is on
account of higher
interest rates and
higher investments
in Fixed Deposits

* Earnings available for Debt Service = Net profit after taxes + Non cash operating expenses like depreciation and amortizations + Interest + loss on sale of

fixed assets

**Debt Service = Interest + Principal payments

***Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

**** Capital Employed = Total Shareholders equity (Other equity + Equity Share capital) - Deferred Tax assets
**** Time weighted average Investments = Number of days of investment / 365 days * Value of Investment

B °O2
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Note 44: Relationship with struck off companies %in lakhs
NETE R G Nature o'f ) March 31, Relationship with the March 31, Relationship with
transactions with Struck off company, the Struck off company,
company 2024 . ) 2023 | ,
struck off company if any, to be disclosed if any, to be disclosed
Kothari Intergroup Limited Shareholders 0.00 None 0.00 None
M H T Investment Private  Shareholders 0.00 None - None
Limited
Nibr Metal Industries Shareholders 0.00 None - None
Private Limited
Paxal Leasing Ltd Shareholders 0.01 None 0.01 None
R. Sanghi Stock Brokers Shareholders 0.00 None 0.00 None
And Finance Private
Limited
Karni Securities Private Shareholders 0.00 None - None
Limited
Roopak Trading And Shareholders 0.00 None 0.00 None
Investments Private
Limited
Siddha Papers Private Shareholders 0.00 None 0.00 None
Limited
The India Sugar Agencies  Shareholders 0.00 None 0.00 None
Private Limited
Economic Gateway Vendor 0.71 None 0.71 None
Consultants Private
Limited
Havin Homes Realty & Vendor - None 014 None

Consulting Services

Private Limited

Multitech System Vendor = None 0.07 None
Industrial Automation

Private Limited

Orion Innovations India Vendor 12.00 None 12.00 None
Private Limited

Note : Amount less than % 1,000 appearing in above table are disclosed at 0.00 due to presentation in lakhs.

Note 45: The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. With respect to changes made by certain privileged access rights to the SAP application and/or the
underlying database audit trail feature is not enabled. The Company does have a privileged access monitoring tool that
monitors these access rights and the Company is in the process of further strengthening this feature with adequate logs to
be maintained. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the software. The
Company is also in the process of maintaining daily back up of audit trail (edit logs) on servers physically located in India.

Note 46: Other Statutory information

(i) The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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(iiiy The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(iv) The Company has not traded, nor invested in any Crypto currency or virtual currency during the period ended March
31, 2024.

(v) During the period, the Company has not advanced or given any loan or invested funds to any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that Intermediary shall:

(@) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsover by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries ) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) During the period, the Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that Company shall:

(@) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsover by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 47: subsequent to year end, the Company has declared a Second Interim dividend of ¥ 26/- per share and one time
special interim dividend of % 10/- per share aggregating to ¥ 97,915 Lakhs on May 14, 2024 for FY 2023-24 which will be
paid on and from June 7, 2024.

Note 48: Exceptional Item includes severance and related expenses of ¥ 1,950.20 Lakhs (Previous Year : 1,120.87 Lakhs)
for the year ended 31" March 2024 with respect to certain organisation structure changes.

Note 49: Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified as considered necessary, to conform with the current
year presentation, where applicable.

Signature to Notes 1to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited
ForSRBC&COLLP M. S. Jacob Prabha Narasimhan
Chartered Accountants Whole-time Director & Managing Director &
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
(DIN : 07645510) (DIN : 08822860)
per Pritesh Maheshwari Surender Sharma
Partner Whole-time Director - Legal
Membership Number - 118746 & Company Secretary
(F-8913)
(DIN:02731373)
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2024 Date : May 14, 2024
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